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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

True to the Sullivan dictum that "form follows function," this small, com­ 
pact bank, for all its elaborate and beautiful ornamentation, has the look 
of soundness and solidity and imparts the feeling of permanence and safety 
befitting a bank. Morrison1 describes it thus:

"The exterior is made of tapestry brick, ranging widely in color through 
bj^ms andgolden yellows. The general form...is severely rectilinear, 
with broad expanses of plain wall surface against which the decorative en­ 
richment of the portal and range of side windows stands out the more vivid­ 
ly. The small facade has only two openings below: the entrance door and 
a large window opening on the officers* platform within. Resting across 
these is a_huge; decorative lintel, or panel, with the name of the bank 
lettered on a polished slab of verde antique marble framed by lavish terra 
cotta ornament in a mottled green color. The arched opening above has a 
lunette .with! colored glass, and a recessed archivolt in four faces,.." 
That, as Morrison states, "the heraldic lions perched on Sullivanesque 
fasces....seem somewhat out of place," is a matter of opinion. One might 
observe that rather than looking out of place they appear disproportion­ 
ately small but otherwise quite in keeping with the general ornament of 
the facade, each sitting upright and bearing a shield on which are carved 
the initials F and M. "The side wall,"Morrison continues, "slightly bat­ 
tered in its lower half, has a massive solidity akin to that of the 
Egyptian style, but with the lyric ornament of the row of arched windows, 
nothing of its ponderous character.

"The interior is a long narrow room, affording space for tellers' cages 
only on one side^ but the arrangement of these is essentially the same as 
in the /Sullivan/ bank at Sidney /(Ship/." This is not to say that the 
interior has any lack of spaciousness. One does not feel crowded inside 
the building, and one is impressed by the lasting beauty of the stained 
glass in the front and rear lunettes and in the five-window arcade along 
the side. All of this glass is original, fully intact, and as strikingly 
beautiful now as when it was installed in 1919 t the year in which the bank 
was built.

To the original one-story annex at the rear of the building has been added 
an extension of .iSire.c more bays, all done with painstaking care to carry 
out the original design of the building. Even the terra_cotta ornamentaticn 
has been made from impressions taken from the original work in other parts 
of the building and was matched with the original in color so that it not 
only closely simulates the original mottled green now but will also con­ 
tinue to match it as aging progresses. The addition to the annex is the 
only major alteration, and the original main body of the bank, inside and 
out, remains essentially unchanged. The building has been maintained with 
much pride and care.

1. Morrison, 223-24
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Farmers and Merchants Union Bank is significant not only because it was 
designed and supervised by master architect Louis H. Sullivan, but also be­ 
cause it is the last^of a series of eight banks he built in small midwesterr 
and Great Lakes states towns between 1907 and 1919. It was his last archi­ 
tectural commission for a complete building as his final purely architectur­ 
al commission was for the facade only of a music store and residence in 
Chicago. The bank is, in addition, one of onlytwo Louis Sullivan buildings 
in Wisconsin, the other being the Bradley house in Madison in 1909, which 
was probably as much the work of George Elmsley as of Sullivan himself, al­ 
though Sullivan was the architect of record.

As to the significance of the Sullivan banks as a whole, Morrison, largely 
quoting Tallmadge, states: "These buildings stand out like jewels on the 
shoddy main streets of the prairie towns. Tallmadge says of Sullivan*s 
banks: 'Their color, brilliance and gaity entirely put in the shade the 
thin, awkward and wan examples of the country builder, and to the same de­ 
gree the pallid and pudgy Roman frontispieces of the city architect...The 
ornament, by its intricacy and vitality, compels the interest of the com­ 
moner who would, as we, pass by a mile of eggs and darts without sensing 
their existence...These banks are a book of wonders to a people who all of 
their lives have been contemptuous of or oblivious to architecture.'"

Experts may vary widely in the way they rate the Columbus bank among those 
that Sullivan built, but this building, completely Sullivan in concept, de­ 
sign and feeling, will hold its own within the group. Unlike that of many 
earlier Sullivan buildings the ornamentation was entirely that of Sullivan's 
hand and not that of Elmslie or an understudy. In concept and execution it 
is beautiful. The terra cotta molding was done, at Sullivan's firm insis­ 
tence, by Kristian Schneider.^ Sullivan himself was proud of this bank, 
calling it his "jewel box.*' Throughout the greater period of its construc­ 
tion he lived in the home of the bank president in Columbus so that he could 
personally supervise the building. The bank has been much photographed to 
ejcemplify Sullivan'jsintricate, masterful ornamentation. Sullivan's draw­ 
ings for the Farmers and Merchants Union Bank have been published, appearing 
as special contents in The Eakins Press 1967 reprinting of Sullivan's book, 
A System of Architectural Ornament, which was first published in 1924.

1. Morrison, 206-207
2. Szarkowski, 10
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